ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

February 16, 2009

3:17 p.m
Kurt QA son, Chair
Mar k Neurman, Vice Chair
M ke Chenaul t
John Coghi | |
Bob Lynn
Robert L. "Bob" Buch

Li ndsey Hol nes

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Harry Crawford (on tel econference)

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE RESCLUTI ON NO. 5
Opposing any federal legislation that seeks to elimnate the
private election phase of wunion recognition canpaigns or that
seeks to inpose conpul sory and binding arbitration on enpl oyers.

- MOVED HR 5 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 22

"An Act relating to requiring subcontractors who do not have
enpl oyees and who are acting as independent contractors to
secure paynment for workers' conpensation, and to requiring
subcontractors who fail to secure paynent of wor ker s

conpensation to pay additiona
because of that failure."

prem uns incurred by contractors

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 102

"An Act relating to the Uniform Comrercial Code, to the genera
provi sions of the Uniform Commercial Code, to docunents of title
under the Uniform Commercial Code, to the Uniform Electronic
HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 16, 2009



Transactions Act, and to |ease-purchases of personal property;
anending Rules 403 and 902, Alaska Rules of Evidence;, and
providing for an effective date."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HR 5

SHORT TITLE: OPPOSI NG FEDERAL EMPLOYEE FREE CHO CE ACT
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) JOHNSON

01/ 30/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 09 (H) L&C

02/ 11/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 11/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 11/ 09 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 16/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 22

SHORT TITLE: WORKERS COVPENSATI ON: SUBCONTRACTORS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CRAWFORD, BUCH

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) L&C, FIN

02/ 16/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

JEANNE OSTNES, Staff

Representative Crai g Johnson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HR 5.

M LLI E DUNCAN, Adm ni strator

W I df | ower Court

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HR 5.

LI NDA SHI LTZ
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HR 5.

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 2- February 16, 2009



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HR 5.

REBECCA LOGAN, President

Associ ated Buil ders and Contractors (ABC- AK)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HR 5.

SCOTT JUNGW RTH, Chi ef Human Resource O ficer
Provi dence Health & Services

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HR 5.

GARY HUME

Nati onal Federation of Business (NFIB)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HR 5 and in
opposition of the federal EFCA |egislation.

STACY ALLEN

Heal th Care Representative; Regi stered Nurse

Laborers Local 341

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HR 5.

JEANI NE ST. JOHN, Vice-President

Lynden Logi stics (Lynden)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HR 5.

HElI DI DRYGAS

CGeneral Counse

Al aska District Council of Laborers

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HR 5.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWORD

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions via
tel econference during the discussion of HR 5; and testified via
tel econference as joint prinme sponsor of HB 22.

HELENE ANTEL, Legal Counsel

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 3- February 16, 2009



| nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers Local 1547

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HR 5.

TI M SHARP, Busi ness Manager

Laborers Local 942

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HR 5.

PAUL GRCSSI, Staff

Representative Harry Crawford

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 22 on behalf of a joint prine
sponsor, Representative Harry Crawford.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:17: 27 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:17 p. m

Representatives Buch, Coghill, Lynn, Neuman, O son were present
at the call to order. Representatives Chenault and Hol nes
arrived as the neeting was in progress. Representative Gatto

was also in attendance. Representative Harry Crawford testified
via tel econference.

HR 5- OPPCSI NG FEDERAL EMPLOYEE FREE CHO CE ACT

3:18: 00 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE RESOLUTION NO 5, Opposing any federal legislation that
seeks to elimnate the private election phase of union
recognition canpaigns or that seeks to inpose conpulsory and
bi nding arbitration on enpl oyers.

3:18: 11 PM
JEANNE OSTNES, on behalf of the prime sponsor, Representative
Crai g Johnson, stated that HR 5 was previously heard before the

conmm ttee. She offered to review provisions of HR 5 if needed
and to answer questions.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 4- February 16, 2009



3:19:44 PM

M LLI E DUNCAN, Adm nistrator, WIdflower Court, stated that she
wi shed to speak in support of HR 5. She explained that she is
the admnistrator of a skilled nursing home in Juneau. She
recalled a scenario in 2003, such that a group of enployees at
the facility decided they wanted union representation and
selected a union. The enployees net with representatives and
were given cards to collect signatures. She stated that
enpl oyees visited other enployees at their honmes or surrounded
some co-workers and waited until they filled out the cards. She
further stated that sone tine later an enployee related an
incident that had happened during that time period. She said
the enpl oyee told her that she had refused to sign the card and
was shoved around in the bathroom until she eventually signed
t he card.

M5. DUNCAN enphasized that it is inportant to have a free
election, no mtter what the outcone. She stressed the
i nportance for enployees to have a safe workplace and not be
intimdated and forced to make choices they don't want to nake.
She offered her belief that the current system of holding free
and private elections is beneficial. She concluded by stating
that she described the experience an enployee had at WI df | ower
Court, which she said she thought was not a unique experience.
She encouraged nenbers to support HR 5.

3:21:46 PM

M5. DUNCAN, in response to Representative Lynn, answered that
she did not make a police report since the enployee talked to
her sonetine |ater. She added that she talked to the wunion
about the incident. The union representative said that he/she
did not have any control over actions taken between co-workers.

3:22:19 PM

M5. DUNCAN, in response to Representative Neuman, answered that
the union held an election and enployees voted in a union.
However, negotiations proceeded but no agreenent was reached
bet ween the adm nistration and the union. Anot her el ection was
hel d and the union was voted out, she stated.

M5. DUNCAN, in response to Representative Buch answered that she
has read the Enpl oyee Free Choice Act (EFCA).

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 5- February 16, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE BUCH expl ai ned that elections are not elimnated
by the EFCA.

M5. DUNCAN offered her belief that the election provision does
not offer a private and secret ball ot process.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH responded that those of wus that advocate
options want to maintain the choices.

3:23:45 PM

LI NDA SHI LTZ explained that she works at W] dfl ower Court. She
of fered her support for HR 5. She related that as M. Duncan
descri bed, sone enployees desired union representation. She
said that she nmade it known she was not in support of wunion
representation, which resulted in a difficult work environnent.

She explained that she felt her enployer was fair. She rel ated
that she did not want to pay union dues or have wunion
representati on. Ms. Shiltz stated that she appreciates the
freedom of a secret ballot and the ability to vote privately for
her choice simlar to the process of nobst elections. She
offered her belief that the private, secret ballot separates the
US fromtotalitarian types of governnents. She opi ned that
the election outconme does not matter. However, everyone should

have the right to privacy, she stated.
3:25:26 PM

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH inquired as to whether M. Shiltz could
conpare wages and conditions in any other institutions.

M5. SHILTZ offered her belief that wages at WIdfl ower Court are
simlar to wages at Bartlett Menorial Hospital in Juneau. She
related that W | df | owner Court enpl oyees have benefits,
retirement, health insurance, paid holidays, and personal |eave.

M5. SHILTZ, in response to Representative Buch, responded that
she is not sure if other nursing honmes are simlar to WIdfl ower
Court. She nentioned that she was not aware of other nursing
hones in Juneau.

3:27:20 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, Al aska State Legislature, expressed
his concern that the resolution inplies that it is about “free-

choice.” He offered his belief that some people mght interpret
“free-choice” to nean that they have the right to commt soneone

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 6- February 16, 2009



else to their way of thinking. He suggested that those people
m ght think, “That’s ny choice. | can force you to raise your
hand and commt to a position because it is ny choice.” He
stressed that instance or circunstance would not be a valid
choi ce. He stated that individually, each person has one vote,
and his/her vote should be confidential. Totalitarian dictators
often receive 99 percent of the vote, because people do not have
free choice, he stated. He said he thinks it is reasonable and
fair to interpret “free choice” as keeping a person’s vote

confidenti al . He indicated that as representatives of the
people, the conmittee votes should be open. However, during
el ections constituents vote for or against their representatives
in elections with a private, secret ballot. He related that the
vote is private wunless a person chooses to tell their
representatives how they voted. He opined that the EFCA is
m sl abel ed. He opined that the nobst reasonable position is to

keep the voting process private.
3:30: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in response to Representative Buch,
answered that he has not read the EFCAin its entirety.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH offered his belief that nothing in the EFCA
or in the National Labor Relations Act of 1935 (NLRA) elim nates
the opportunity for an el ection. He explained that no |anguage
prohi bits enployees fromthat right. He recalled testinony that
described two elections that were conducted in Juneau. He
recalled that one voted for wunion representation and one
decertified the union. He inquired as to whether Representative
Gatto could point out |anguage that elim nates el ections.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to the reason for the
resolution is if a process is intact to vote for and against the

uni on. He recalled that nurses at Providence Hospital elected
to be nenbers of |BEW He further recalled the nurses |ater
voted to decertify the wunion representation. However, he
i ndicated that the election was conducted using a private ball ot
process and not a raise of hands. He said, “If indeed you're
okay with everybody having a private ballot, |1’m not sure why

you woul d even support this bill.”

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH recalled last l|egislative session that this
body adopted a resolution, House Joint Resolution 25, which was
to support the freedomto choose unions, and to support the EFCA
of 2007 that was before the Congress at that tine. He offered

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 16, 2009



his belief that HR 5 is unnecessary, which is why he said he has
been aski ng these questi ons.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that he is in opposition of the
pending EFCA before the Congress. He enphasized that the
pendi ng EFCA is not necessary. He offered his support for HR 5.
In response to Representative Neuman, Representative G@Gtto
responded by offering his belief that everyone should have the
right to an el ection, which should be held as a secret ballot.

3:34:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH offered his strong support of the right for
everyone to have an election, too. He maintained that his view
that HR 5 is unnecessary since this body passed a resolution
| ast year.

3:34:36 PM

M5. OSTNES expl ained that currently, approximately 60 percent of
the secret ballot elections are held during union organizing.
She offered that the NLRA provides unions with the secret ball ot
choice. She related that the EFCA before the Congress |ast year
passed the House of Representatives but did not pass the Senate.
She pointed out that not only does the EFCA renbve one option
for a secret ballot, but it adds a fourth choice. She pointed
out that enployees are required to sign cards, not secretly, and
when a majority of 51 percent is reached, the other options are
no |onger avail able. She stressed that only 51 percent of the
enpl oyees make the choice for all of the enployees, who never
chose union representation. She offered that once 51 percent of
the “card check” process is fulfilled, that union negotiations
with the enployer wll Dbegin. Therefore, the rest of the
enpl oyees do not have the opportunity to vote, she stated.

M5. OSTNES related that if the negotiations are successful, the
union represents the enployees. And if an agreenent is not
reached within 130 days, a federal arbitrator is assigned, which
creates a problem for the enployer, she opined. Addi tionally,
the process continues for tw years, which is also a problem for
an enployer, she stated. She said she anticipates that the
Congress wll take the matter up since President Gbama and
Secretary Solis, the new Secretary of Labor have offered their
support for EFCA. Thus, she enphasized that the HR 5 should be
passed to inform the Congress that Al aska does not agree wth
t he provisions of EFCA

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 8- February 16, 2009



3:37:40 PM

M5. OSTNES, in response to Representative Lynn, explained that
currently a secret ballot is allowed and unions prevail 60
percent of the tine. However, if any EFCA bill passes the
Congress, the union organizers would hand enployees a card and
once 51 percent of the workers sign the card, the union prevails
and an election is not held, she related. Thus, if a group of
20 enpl oyees are consi dering whet her to have uni on
representation, and 11 sign the “card check”, the remaining 9
enpl oyees would not have a choice in the matter. She opi ned
that many smaller conpanies will be affected and unions would
prefer to use the “card check” since it is |ess expensive for
themthan to hold an el ection.

3:40: 02 PM

M5. OSTNES, in response to Representative Lynn, reiterated that
an el ection would not be held.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN related his understanding that HR 5 would
not change the opportunity for an election. He inquired as to
whet her an el ection would be hel d.

M5. OSTNES explained that she has not been involved in an
enpl oyer and uni on el ection.

3:41: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES offered that the majority rules and 11
peopl e would determ ne the outcone of an election whether it is
done by *“card check” or ballot. She enphasized that under
existing law the majority decides the outcone.

M5. OSTNES responded that the difference is that in an election
all of the enployees vote by secret ballot in private.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH recalled two wtnesses testified that
el ections were held. He related that the success of an election
does not necessarily nean that the union prevail ed. He offered
his belief that wunion nenbership is down. He stated that his
uni on menbership has declined from 20 percent in the 80s to 12
per cent today. Thus, he stated unions are | osing. He rel ated
that unions may prevail on “the front end” but in the end
enpl oyees are not able to obtain union representation.
Additionally, he pointed out that “card check” was a conponent
in the 1935 |egislation. He opined it has not been used

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 9- February 16, 2009



frequently, but “card check” is not new. He further opined that
i nstead of | osing an option, enployees would gain an option.

M5. OSTNES referred to nenbers’ packets and to a publication by
the U S. Departnent of Labor (US-DOL) titled “NEWS dated
January 28, 2009, that provides statistics for union nenbership
in 2008. She stated that the publication reported that workers
bel onging to a union rose by 428,000 in 2008.

3:45: 47 PM

CHAIR OLSON clarified that this issue has not been singled out
as an issue to revisit. He explained that the legislature is
revisiting other issues, such as the Public Enployees Retirenent
System (PERS) and Teachers Retirenment System (TRS), and
wast ewat er di schar ge.

3:46: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN related his wunderstanding that HR 5
addresses the issue of privacy. He further related that the
issue is not a mtter of an election, but to ensure that
enpl oyees have the opportunity to cast their vote in private, in
a secret ballot.

VB. OSTNES agreed that the secret ballot is inportant.
Additionally, the EFCA abandons the concept that parties should
be bound only to the terns and conditions of enploynent when an
agreenent is reached, as well as that the act inposes penalties
on enpl oyers and not the unions, she rel ated.

3:47:51 PM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN related his understanding that a person
could sign the card in private and could mail it in.

M5. DUNCAN agreed that a person could choose to sign the card in
private. She restated that the enployee that came to her was
intimdated by a group of other enployees who supported union
representation and shoved her around and the enpl oyee signed the
card.

3:49: 20 PM
REBECCA LOGAN, President, Associated Builders and Contractors

(ABC- AK), stated that she wished to testify in favor of HR 5 and
against the federal EFCA bill. She opined the EFCA bill is

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -10- February 16, 2009



poorly witten legislation that contains |oopholes. She
expl ai ned that the EFCA replaces secret ballot elections with a
“card check” process, and i ncl udes conmpul sory bi ndi ng
arbitration for first contracts, and an increase in unfair |abor
practice sanctions that are applied exclusively to enployers.
She referred to section 2 of the federal EFCA which she
identified as the section that renoves the requirenent for a
secret ballot. She explained that the language in the bill
renoves the requirenment for secret ballot elections and makes it
opti onal .

M5. LOGAN related that the |anguage specifies that iif the
Nat i onal Labor Relations Board (NLRB) finds that a majority of
the enpl oyees have signed an authorization card they shall not
direct an election. However, the problemwth the bill is that
it does not lay out the option for the enployees, such as who
would initiate the efforts to hold a secret ballot, or how
enpl oyees would be able to determne that they would prefer the
el ection to the “card check.” She offered that two weeks ago
the legislative director for the Anmerican Federation of Labor
and Congress of | ndustri al Organi zations (AFL/C O, Bill
Sanmuel s, said those rules have not yet been worked out with the
NLRB. Thus, the law would pass wi thout that option detailed,
she not ed.

M5. LOGAN al so pointed out that nothing in the proposed federal
statute settles the question of how arbitration panels will be
set up, the scope of their powers, or ability to issue decrees
on matters of fact and |aw. She opined that the EFCA does not
make any effort to indicate the set of relevant considerations
for the arbiter’s decrees, which is in sharp contrast to the
detail ed specifications of procedures and standards in Al aska’s
law that requires interest arbitration in the public sector.
She said, “Finally, with regard to the unfair |abor practice
sanctions that are applied exclusively to enployers, it's really

al nost enbarrassing that this bill doesn't recognize the fact
that wunion organizers and overzeal ous pro-union enployees are
al so capabl e of coercive behavior during a union election.” She
related that an entire departnent at the U S Departnent of
Labor deals with union corruption and union coercion. She

opined that to only have sanctions against enployers is very
unfair. She offered her support for HR 5.

3:52:18 PM

M5. LOGAN, in response to Representative Buch, explained that
Section 3 of the EFCA of 2007, titled “Facilitating Initial

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 16, 2009



Col l ective Bargaining Agreenments” only refers to the tineline of
the arbitration

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH enphasized that |anguage mnekes it very
specific, which he related is a conponent of the negotiations
process.

SCOTT JUNGW RTH, Chief Human Resource O ficer, Providence Health
& Services, asked to speak in favor of passage of HR 5. He
of fered that Providence Health & Services is opposed to the EFCA
since it would fundanentally change the current union election

system that 1is based on the principle of denpcracy. He
explained that the current system allows for free and fair
el ections, in which ballots are cast in private, free from
interference or influence by either side. He opined that open
di al ogue and a direct dialogue with enployees provide the best
means to carry out the healing mssion. He related that his

enpl oyer respects the rights of enployees to be represented by a
third party. He explained that his enployer collaborates with
nmore than 40 bargaining units across its facilities in western
states such as Alaska or California. He further related that
the enployee should have the right to choose whether to be
represented by a union through a fair election process, free
from coercion or intimdation. He expressed concern wth
provisions in the EFCA that would inpose mandatory binding
arbitration if an agreenent is not met in 30 days of a request
for nmediation on the initial collective bargaining agreenent.
He opined that it is in the best interests of the enployer and
enpl oyee to resolve issues through the process of collective
bar gai ni ng as dictated by the NLRA

3:55: 30 PM

GARY HUME, National Federation of Independent Business (NFIB)
related his personal experience, that he was a “union nman” for

25 years. He explained that he left his job and now works in
the private sector. He opined that he was nore or less stifled
in the union with little chance for inprovenment or to gain a
better wage. He further opined that a person wth 5 years of
experience earned the sanme wages as he did. He stated that he
opposes union infiltration into the private sector. He said

“And we already know that nost of what is going on in the public
sector is tied up with union fat.” He reiterated that he is

strongly opposed to the pending federal EFCA, which he opined
has no nerit.

3:57:20 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 16, 2009



STACY ALLEN, Health Care Representative; Registered Nurse,
Laborers Local 341, stated that she is a representative of the
Labors Local 341 and a registered nurse.

MS. ALLEN stated that in 1996, she worked in a hospital. She
related that she and her «colleagues felt that the hospital
managenent nade sone dangerous decisions that placed patients at
risk as well as jeopardizing their nursing |icenses. Despite
di scussions w th managenent as patient advocates, managenent did
not listen to the nurses. She offered that the nurses reached
out to the union, Local 341. She pointed out that the nurses
were at-will enployees and managenent made it clear during the
organi zi ng canpai gn that enployees had no rights. She indicated
that the chief operating officer (CEQ told the nurses they were
unprofessional, that the nurses did not care about their
patients, only noney. Addi tionally, managenent told the nurses
that they would | ose benefits and be laid off, she stated.

M5. ALLEN described the process as so intimdating, that the
union filed an wunfair |labor practice with the NLRB. She
remarked that the NLRB ruled that the CEO had commtted an
unfair |abor practice. H s penalty was that he was required to
read a letter restating the NLRA provisions. However, he
continued to berate enployees, she nentioned. Despite the
threats, the nurses won their election, she rel ated. She not ed
that it took three years to obtain a contract due to delay
tactics such as nmanagenent only agreeing to neet for
negoti ati ons once or twice every few nonths. However, she said
that over the past 12 years, nurses have developed a very
cooperative relationship with the current mnagenent, that the
enpl oyer and enployees work together to benefit all parties.
She explained that in her current job she is often contacted by
health care enployees who feel that their ability to provide
good patient care is sonetimes conprom sed by managenent’s
actions. Sonet i nmes enpl oyees relate har assnent or
discrimnation at the hands of a supervisor, she stated. She
opi ned that enployees, regardless of their rank, all expressed
concern that they mght be fired or subject to denotion in the
event that nmanagenent even knew that the enployees held
di scussions with a | abor union.

M5 ALLEN said, “After all nmanagenent sets your schedule.
Managenment approves or denies your vacation. Managenment awar ds
or denies overtine. Managenent pr onot es, denvot es, and
determ nes your rate of pay.” She stated that from her

observations as an enployee participating in an organizing

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -13- February 16, 2009



canpaign that it is very difficult for enployees to reach out to
a labor union wunder the current system She related her
understanding that the EFCA would help alleviate sonme of the
natural constraints. She urged the conmittee not to pass HR 5.

4:00: 51 PM

M5. ALLEN, in response to Representative Buch, explained that
the union process started in 1995 and the election was held in
Sept enber 1996. She described the canpaign as acrinonious. She
indicated that the enployer tried hard to discredit the union

and the enployees feared they would lose their jobs. In further
response to Representative Buch, she offered her belief that
joining the union nade a huge difference. She surm sed when
enpl oyees in a hospital are represented by a |abor union, that
comuni cation is opened up. She conplained that the hospital
had been overl oadi ng enpl oyees, sone nurses were laid off, and
the hospital had not purchased adequate supplies. She opi ned

that union representation nade a difference. She remarked that
enpl oyees have a safe environnment to air issues, and the nurses
collectively approach nanagenment wth issues that arise.
Additionally, she nentioned that nmanagenent pays attention to
any issues, which did not happen when a nurse individually
brought up an issue.

4:03: 28 PM

JEANINE ST. JOHN, Vice-President, Lynden Logistics (Lynden),
stated she would like to testify in support of HR 5, effectively
opposing the EFCA, which is comonly referred to as the “card
check” bill. She offered her belief that the EFCA approach is
unnecessary and a poor approach to |abor managenent practices.
She enphasized that the Lynden conpanies strongly oppose such
| egi sl ati on. She related that the current process of secret
ballot elections is the appropriate process to ensure that
enpl oyees are not subject to threats or coercion. She surm sed
that the EFCA woul d take away the rights of enployees to use the
secret ballot to nmake the decision of whether to organize in the
wor kpl ace. She highlighted that Lynden has union and non-union
representation in various parts of its conpany. She stressed
that Lynden strongly supports the decision for its workers to
work through collective bargaining units and the nethods by
which votes are taken to make decisions. She observed that the
current nmechani smoperates fairly.

M5. ST. JOHN opined that critical decisions should be based on
information pertaining to the process in an atnosphere free from

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 16, 2009



i ntimdation. She enphasized that enployees cannot rmake
reasoned choices if they only hear one side of issue. She
expressed concern that the federal governnent would be involved
into the contract negotiation process as proposed by the EFCA
She expressed concern over the potential for a governnent
enpl oyee presiding over nmandatory binding arbitration, with the
potential to inpose his/her decision on the enployer and the
bargaining unit for up to two years. Additionally, she also
expressed concern that a governnent enployee would have
sufficient know edge of the industry and specific issues in the
wor kpl ace to make an educated deci sion. She pointed out that
provisions are not in the proposed EFCA that would change the
arbitrator’s decision during the two year period.

M5. ST. JOHN opined that the proposed “card check” bill does not
of fer guidance pertaining to the proposed binding arbitration
process, the nethod for choosing an arbitrator, or the manner
for challenging his/her decision. Instead, the EFCA bill would
allow the governnment to convey authority to a third party to
essentially decide what a private sector enployer nust provide
in terns of wages and benefits free fromthe checks and bal ances
of wunit ratification. Wiile the EFCA raises other additional
i ssues, she stated she only wished to address the two issues
She urged nenbers to vote yes on HR 5 and to continue to support
the enployees’ ability to make decisions through a thoughtful
private ballot process wthout the potential for coercion or
t hreat .

4:06:49 PM

HEI DI DRYGAS, Ceneral Counsel, Alaska D strict Council of
Laborers, as general counsel for the Alaska D strict Council of
Laborers, related that she would like to clarify provisions in
t he EFCA She explained the process and enphasized that the
EFCA does not take away the secret ballot provision of the NFLA
She explained that if 30 percent of the enployees want to hold
an election, they can file a petition to do so. She referred to
HR 5, stating that the |anguage stating federal supervision of
union recognition elections by the National Labor Relations
Board has been a legal requirenent for at |least 60 years is
i ncorrect.

M5. DRYGAS stated that currently there are tw ways for
recognition as a bargaining representative. One, is to hold an
el ection as established by section 9 (c) of the NLRA, and the
other is through a mjority signup. She expl ai ned that under
the EFCA, the union presents a mgjority of the cards to the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- February 16, 2009



enpl oyer and the enployer has an option to voluntarily recognize
the union as the exclusive representative of the enployees,
whi ch she offered has happened with sone | arge enpl oyers such as
Kai ser Permanent e. She offered that the EFCA takes that choice
away from the enployer and gives it to the enpl oyees who through
signing cards indicate they want wunion representation, she
st at ed.

M5. DRYGAS referred to two clauses in HR 5 which state that the
private ballot elections will guarantee an outcone unaffected by
outside pressures, as well as that “card checks” will create an
opportunity for enployers and union organizers to retaliate
agai nst enpl oyees because of their votes. She said, “In
reality, nothing could be further from the truth. In the first
seventy years of the NLRA, there have been only 42 docunented
cases of fraud or coercion found against wunions in the
subm ssion of authorization cards.” She observed that is |ess
than one case per year. According to an Economic Policy
Institute Issue brief dated January 29, 2009, the majority sign-
up has been recognized as a neans to union representation, she
st at ed. In contrast, she noted that in 2007, the NLRB annual
report identified 29,000 cases of intimdation and coercion by
enpl oyers agai nst enpl oyees. She pointed out that an NLRB study
of 400 union elections identified that 32 percent of enployees
who actively supported the union were fired. She said, “The
truth is that this is a l|opsided problem which is one of the
reasons we’'re urging passage of this act, and a vote against
this resolution.” She stressed that the Al aska District Counci
of Laborers seeks a fair process for enployees, free of enployer
intimdation and coercion. She opined that our country is based
on a sinple principle of majority rule. She offered her belief
that 47 percent of America did not vote for Barack Obama for
president, yet he is still the President of the United States of
Aneri ca. She noted that union representation is no exception.
She pointed out that najority rule has been in place since the
inception of the NLRA in 1935.

M5. DRYGAS referred to |anguage in proposed HR 5, which states
that private balloting in elections exenplifies Anerican ideals.

She opined that these types of <clains that equate typica

elections in this country with the NLRB elections are false.
She stated that the reality is that the two types of elections
barely resenble each other. She surmsed that there are few
denocratic principles to glean from NLRB el ections. She pointed
out that elections for wunion representation usually occur on
enpl oyer property and canpaign finance |aws do not apply. Thus,

enpl oyers can spend unlimted resources to defeat unions, and

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 16- February 16, 2009



often do, she further opined. She concluded that nothing in
uni on el ections resenbl es whatsoever the denocratic ideals that
citizens strive for in elections in our country.

4:11: 28 PM

M5. DRYGAS, in response to Representative Buch, related the
uni on election process. She stated that typically enployees
approach a wunion when they are dissatisfied wth their
enpl oyer’s response to an issue. She explained that a union
representative wll generally speak to a few enployees to
ascertain the circunstances before it noves forward with an
or gani zi ng canpai gn. At that tine, since the union does not

have access to a |ist of enployees, the process noves forward by
word of nouth, and the wunion collects bargaining cards, she
st at ed. She observed that this process has been in effect for
over seventy years under the NLRA She indicated the signature
col l ection process can take several nonths. She offered that in
her experience, she has never faced a situation where the union
representative has used coercion or threats to collect
signatures. She said, “lIt’s just not the way we do business.”

M5. DRYGAS pointed out that the union still has to reach the
el ection process and then win an election. She related that the
union representatives rely on the enployees and nust convince
enpl oyees that union representation is best for them Thus,
coercion does not work, she surm sed. She expl ained that the
union can petition the NLRB if it collects 30 percent or nore of
the authorization cards. She opined that the wunion wll
generally obtain about 75 to 80 percent of the bargaining cards
before it will petition the NLRB. She reiterated that el ections
are | opsided because the enployer can dissem nate infornmation on
the intranet, while the wunion representative nust conduct
hi s/ her business after hours, or on breaks, or at coffee shops.
She opined that the enployer has a clear advantage in union
el ections. Once the NLRB is petitioned, authorization cards are
verified against the enployer’'s list to ascertain that the
threshold is net. She related that once the threshold is net,
an election date is set and takes place on the enployer’s

property.
4:16: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWFCRD, Al aska State Legislature, stated
that as a former union organizer that he never participated in
an election since his enployer always fired him prior to an
el ection being held. He offered that elections are usually held

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -17- February 16, 2009



one to two years from the start of the process. He recalled
statistics nentioned that unions prevail 60 percent of the tine.
However, a nore neaningful question would be to determne the
nunber of elections that were requested that were not held. He
surm sed that would be a nmuch | arger percentage. He opined that
the only reason the EFCA has occurred is due to the thousands of
enpl oyees nati onwi de have been denied the right to join a union
t hrough enpl oyer coercion and delays by the NLRB. He further
recalled an instance in which the NLRB delay was over three
years.

4:18: 56 PM
HELENE ANTEL, Executive Counsel, International Brotherhood of

El ectrical Wrkers (IBEW Local 1547, stated that she has been
an attorney for 23 of 30 years specializing in |abor [|aw She

pointed out that strong enotions exist, locally and at the
national |evel. She remarked that people’s opinions vary across
a broad spectrum about what the EFCA neans. She offered to
provi de several facts. She opined that legislation is not

pending nor in recent years considered, that seeks to elimnate
the private election phase of union recognition canpaigns. She
opi ned that the fundanmental purpose of HR 5 is inaccurate. She

stated that the pending EFCA act wll not elimnate secret
ball ot el ections. Thus, those who are afraid the EFCA wll
elimnate the secret ballot have unfounded fears. She offered

to outline six circunstances under which secret ballot el ections
will continue.

4:20: 56 PM

MS. ANTEL related, that first, if enployees want a secret ball ot
el ection, they my elect not to sign authorization cards.
Second, prior to a “card check” certification by the NLRB,
enpl oyees may change their mnd and wi thdraw their authorization

cards. If card withdrawals bring the nunber down below 50
percent plus 1, a secret ballot election will be conducted.
Uni ons can request recognition without cards from the nmgjority
of enployees, and the secret ballot election will be conducted
by the NLRB. She stated that unions can request recognition
from the enployer, and if the enployer agrees to do so, a
vol unteer recognition may happen. If not, a secret ballot
election will be held. She renmarked that EFCA permts the

enpl oyer to challenge the conposition of the bargaining unit.
If the NLRB changes the unit, and the definition is different
and the union no longer has a majority of cards, a secret ball ot
el ection will be conducted. She indicated that EFCA permts the

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 18- February 16, 2009



enpl oyees to change their mnds and choose not to be represented
by a union, in which case a secret ballot election wll be
conduct ed. Finally, she noted that if the enployer has reason
to believe that the union no |onger represents a nmjority, the
enpl oyer can request a secret ballot election.

M5. ANTEL reiterated that anyone who has drawn the conclusion
that EFCA renoves a secret ballot election is mstaken. She
expl ai ned that the EFCA gives the enployees the choice whether
or not to sign authorization cards to be represented by a union
or to hold a secret ballot election. She enphasized that under
the current law, the choice whether or not to force enployees
into an election process is the enployers She said, “The
current |aw actually should be called the Enployer Free Choice
Act because it is up to the enployer conpletely to decide
whet her or not its enployee nust participate in a secret ball ot

el ection.” She concluded by noting that it has been clained
that EFCA is flawed because the adm nistrative regulations are
not set forth in the bill. However, bills do not contain

adm ni strative regul ati ons, she stated.
4:23:28 PM

M5. ANTEL, in response to Representative Buch, answered that
very few enployee groups are fortunate enough to begin work
under a collective bargaining union since the enployer has the
ability to delay the bargaining process by a year or two. She
opined that the enployer has the ability and power to nmake
certain that a collective bargaining unit agreenent never
results. In further response to Representative Buch, M. Antel
stated that current elections would take place on the enpl oyers’
property, enployers do not provide a |list and the enployer can
hold the enployees captive and talk to them about all the
“horrible things that will result if the enployees vote for the
uni on.” She opined that the enployers have the ability to
“corner” enpl oyees. She said, “To say that the current |aw
protects enployee choice is to be dishonest.” She opi ned that
the current law allows the enployer to dictate when and under
what circunstances their enployees will be able to organize.

4:26:40 PM

TI M SHARP, Busi ness Manager, Laborers Local 942, offered that he
has worked 15 years as a union representative, and has spent the
past 10 years as a union organizer in Al aska, as well as having
wor ked on uni on canpai gns nationwide. He offered his first-hand
experience in Al aska. He stated that he would like to speak

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -19- February 16, 2009



strongly against HR 5. He characterized HR5 as a thinly veiled
attenpt to try to keep American workers at a huge disadvantage
and prevent them from union representation at their workpl ace.
He opined that businesses that are pushing for changes are not
concerned about their enployees, but their own profits, which
may be reduced by wages, benefits, and safety practices for the
wor ker s.

MR. SHARP stated that organizing is not an easy task, even wth
the NLRB overseeing elections, that regularly enployees are
affected by coercion, threats, surveillance, and intimdation.
He further opined that businesses asked for HR 5, not workers

He stated that businesses are primarily testifying against the
EFCA, not the workers. He pointed out that choosing a union is
a worker’s right, not the conpany’s choice. He surm sed that
hundreds of thousands of workers are reflected in surveys. He
stressed that in one instance in Al aska after two elections and
ten years of negotiations that the workers could not obtain a
first contract agreenent. He opined that the EFCA fixes the
probl em and would offer workers a fair chance to decide if they
want to be in a union

MR. SHARP, in response to Representative Buch, explained that
unions frequently obtain a mninmm of 75 percent, but closer to
100 percent of authorization cards prior to elections. He
opined that the 45 days prior to election represents an
opportunity to fire workers or coerce themto “nelt” the |evel
of support. He further opined that unions frequently don't nove
forward unless they can win, but that the current system is
“skewed” agai nst workers.

4:33:28 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wished to
testify, closed public testinony on HR 5.

4:33:38 PM

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH stated that the commttee has taken
consi derabl e testinony and that he has amendnments to offer.

CHAIR OLSON advised Representative Buch that the anendnents in
guestion were prepared |ast Friday and could have been presented
to the commttee within 24 hours of the neeting. He stated that
doi ng so woul d have followed the commttee’ s guidelines.

4:33: 55 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 20- February 16, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked to read the following into the record:

| wish to express ny displeasure about the 24-hour
policy that has been inposed on submtting amendnents.
| have the right as a legislator to offer anendnents
at any tinme on bills that |I'’m asked to vote on. And,
under parlianmentary rules, the Chair has an obligation
to consider any anendnent that | or other nenbers
offer. In addition, these bill packets are sent by
email unlike any of the other commttees who deliver
paper copies of each packet to ny office 24 hours in
advance. It takes one hour for ny staff to assenble
the bill packet, which |leaves nme less than 5 hours to
review its contents. How am | to get nmy anendnents in
24 hours in advance when | don’t even receive the bill

until 6 hours in advance. The 24-hour policy neans
that there is no way for me to offer amendnents. |If

try to offer anmendnments on the House Floor, | would be
told that the commttee is the proper place to do
this. This system stifles debate and pushes through
| egi sl ation wi t hout full consi derati on. I

respectfully ask the Chair to elimnate this policy.
4:35: 35 PM

CHAIR OLSON reiterated that Representative Buch received the
anendnents |ast Friday, February 13, 20009. He recalled that
Representative Buch spent an hour in his office discussing other
matters with no nention of any anmendnents. He noted that
Representative Buch’s comments are on the record.

4:35: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked to second the issue raised by
Representati ve Buch. She related that it is difficult to get
everything conpleted tinmely when bill packets arrive late in al
commttees. She related her understanding that in this instance
this is the second tinme this bill is being heard. However, she

stated that requiring anmendnents 24 hours in advance is
difficult.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN pointed out that bills are read across the
floor and at that tine legislative staff can research any
I Ssues.

4:37: 03 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -21- February 16, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES inquired as to whether the 24-hour rule
for amendnents is a general policy rule.

CHAI R OLSON advi sed conmittee nenbers that a letter was sent to
every conmmttee at the beginning of the session that outlined
the commttee policies.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH respectfully acknow edged that Chair d son
allowed himto read his opposition to the policy on the record.

4:38:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to page 2, lines 17 and 18 of the
resolution and inquired as to how HR 5 prohibits free speech and
free associ ation.

M5. OSTNES responded that the |anguage refers to the privacy of
secret balloting. She said that the state has a provision to
support constitutional right to privacy.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES stated that the resolution states that it
attacks the constitutional rights to associate and speak freely.
She inquired as to how the EFCA applies since the |anguage
referred to is the first amendnent of the U S. Constitution

MS. OSTNES said she did not know.
4: 40: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to page 2, lines 20 and 21 of HR
5, which she related says that enployees who do not vote in
favor of wunion representation should not be forced to accept
uni on representation and pay mandatory union dues. She inquired
as to whether Ms. Ostnes could identify part of the EFCA that
makes any change to the wunderlying law of Dbasically, the
majority rule, and mnority is bound by that. She offered her
under st andi ng that the EFCA does not change the underlying |aw.

M5. OSTNES responded that President Gbama repeal ed executive
order nunber 13201 on January 30, 2009. She stated that action
to repeal the executive order takes away that right. She opined
that the union dues that are collected can be used for union
politics, |obbying and non-bargaining activities.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES offered her interpretation that the clause
says basically that if you did not vote for wunion, that you

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- February 16, 2009



should not have to be represented by the union. However, she
said she thought that the majority rule applied. She opi ned
that she did not see how this resolution would address anything
in the EFCA

M5. OSTNES pointed out that she thought this would apply to
mandat ory uni on dues.

4:42: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to the next clause, which says
t hat compul sory bi ndi ng arbitration is fundanental |y
unconsti tutional .

M5. OSTNES related that this refers to the takings clause of the
constitution. She explained that you could have a federal
arbitrator nandate that an enpl oyer nmust pay $50 for an enpl oyee
when the enpl oyer can only afford to pay $25.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES suggested that clause is not very clear
She referred to page 1 of HR 5 to the secret ballot
cornerstone, and inquired as to whether all elections are held
by secret ball ot.

M5. OSTNES said she did not know. She surmsed that the
majority of the tinme, votes are held by secret ballot, which
shoul d be al | owed.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES stated that she does not have a secret
ballot in the l|egislature, nor does she have a secret ballot at
any community council neetings.

M5. OSTNES agreed, but suggested that the difference is that it
is her choice to participate.

4:43: 52 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noved to report HR 5 Version 26-LS0419\R
out of commttee wth individual recommendations and the

acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Representative
Chenault, Lynn, Neuman, Coghill, and O son voted in favor of
nmoving to report HR 5 from conmttee. Representati ves Buch and
Hol mres voted against it. Therefore, HR 5 was reported out of

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 23- February 16, 2009



t he House Labor and Commerce Standing Committee by a vote of 5-
2.

4:44: 39 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from4:44 to 4:49 p. m

HB 22- WORKERS' COWMPENSATI ON:  SUBCONTRACTORS

4:49:15 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 22, "An Act relating to requiring subcontractors
who do not have enployees and who are acting as independent
contractors to secure paynent for workers' conpensation, and to
requiring subcontractors who fail to secure paynent of workers
conpensation to pay additional premuns incurred by contractors
because of that failure."

4:49: 20 PM

PAUL GROSSI, Staff, Representative Harry Crawford, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, speaking on behalf of a joint prine sponsor of HB
22, Representative Harry Crawford, stated that the bill would
require sole proprietors that are subcontractors to carry
wor kers' conpensation on thensel ves. He offered that this bil
woul d address a long-standing issue that identifies whether a
subcontractor is actually a subcontractor or an enployee. He
stated that in the worst case, a worker is injured, does not
have workers' conpensation insurance, and files a claim agai nst
the contractor. He explained those clains would go to the
Workers' Conpensation Board to determne whether the injured
wor ker is an enployee or a subcontractor. He indicated that if
the injured worker is found to be an enployee that the enployer
must cover the W rkers' Conpensation claim However, if the
Workers' Conpensation board finds that the injured person is
determ ned to be a subcontractor, he/she is personally |iable or
their insurance conmpany nust pay the claim

4:51: 34 PM

MR. GROSSI related that the nore common instance arises when a
contractor wins a bid, begins the job, and during an insurance
audit, the insurance conpany requires the contractor to pay
addi tional prem unms, which reduces the contractor’s profit. The
nost common conplaint is that sonme contractors cover their
enpl oyees, but ot her contractors cal | their wor ker s

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 24- February 16, 2009



subcontractors when in reality they are enployees to avoid
payi ng Workers' Conpensation premuns and to obtain a bidding
advant age. Additionally, the enployee affected work in the
construction industry, which poses higher risks for injury. I n
the event the worker is injured and not covered by workers'
conpensation, the potential exists to shift the cost to a
hospi tal . He opined that in many instances the workers are
truly subcontractors. He stressed that this bill renoves the
uncertainty and renoves the doubt of liability and coverage.

4:54: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  HARRY  CRAWFORD, Al aska State Legislature,
speaking as joint prinme sponsor of HB 22, stated that he has
worked on this issue since he has served in the legislature. He
explained that this issue relates to liability. He stated that
many gener al contractors hire subcontractors wth t he
expectation that the subcontractors hold workers' conpensation
insurance, and often the subcontractors provide proof of

cover age. He pointed out when a subcontractor drops his/her
i nsurance and sonmeone s subsequently injured, that the
liability falls on the general contractor. However, he opined,
the liability should rest with the subcontractor. This bill

requires that the right person has the liability. He offered
that it is not inposing a requirement that a sole proprietor
acquire insurance for hinself/herself. He described a scenario
in which a person is building a home and hires a sole proprietor
to build a deck. He indicated that the person building the deck
is not required to hold workers' conpensation insurance.
However, if a general contractor builds the honme and hires a
subcontractor to build a deck that wunder this bill the
subcontractor nmust hold workers' conpensation insurance, he
stated. He enphasized that HB 22 erases all doubt as to who is
I'iabl e. Representative Crawford opined that this bill helps
ensure a fair and level playing field for general contractors
and subcontractors.

4:56:49 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that HB 22 would be held over for further
consi derati on.

4:57:00 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 25- February 16, 2009



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:57 p.m

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 26- February 16, 2009



